Before the

Administrative Hearing Commission

State of Missouri

DEANNA R. HILL,
)



)



Petitioner,
)




)


vs.

)

No. 06-0104 PH



)

MISSOURI BOARD OF PHARMACY,
)




)



Respondent.
)

DECISION


We deny Deanna R. Hill’s application for registration as a pharmacy technician and place Hill on the Employment Disqualification List (“the EDL”) for four years, effective from 
January 29, 2006.
Procedure


On January 27, 2006, Hill filed a complaint appealing the Missouri Board of Pharmacy’s (“the Board”) decision denying her application for registration as a pharmacy technician and placing her on the EDL.  On February 6, 2006, through an attorney, Hill filed an amended complaint.  On March 1, 2006, the Board filed an answer.  On May 18, 2006, Hill’s attorney withdrew from the case.

We held a hearing on June 2, 2006.  Assistant Attorney General William E. Roberts represented the Board.  Although notified of the time and place of the hearing, neither Hill nor 
anyone representing her appeared.  The matter became ready for our decision on August 2, 2006, the date Hill’s brief was due.

Findings of Fact

1. On February 24, 2003, Hill possessed marijuana.
2. On October 10, 2003, Hill pled guilty in the Circuit Court of Bollinger County, Missouri, to the Class C felony “possession of controlled substance except 35 grams or less of marijuana.”
  The court suspended the imposition of sentence and placed Hill on probation for five years.
3. By application dated March 11, 2005, Hill applied for registration as a pharmacy technician.
4. On her application, Hill answered “yes” to the questions:

1.  Are you now charged in any criminal prosecution, or have you ever been adjudicated guilty or entered a plea of guilty or nolo contendere, in any criminal prosecution in Missouri, in any other state, or in a United States court:

(a) for any offense relating to drugs, narcotics, controlled substances or alcohol, whether or not sentence was imposed?

*   *   *

4.  In the last ten (10) years have you:

(a) used, or are you now using any drugs, controlled substances or alcoholic beverages to an extent that such use impaired or may impair your ability to perform the work of a technician?

5. By letter dated December 30, 2005, the Board notified Hill that her application had been denied and her name placed on the EDL, effective 30 days from the date of the letter.

Conclusions of Law 


We have jurisdiction to hear Hill’s complaint.
  Hill has the burden to show that she is entitled to licensure.
  We exercise the same authority that has been granted to the Board.
  Therefore, we decide the application de novo.
  “May” means an option, not a mandate.
  The appeal vests in this Commission the same degree of discretion as the Board, and we need not exercise it the same way.
  When an applicant for licensure files a complaint, the agency’s answer provides notice of the grounds for denial of the application.
  

The Board argues that there is cause for denial under § 338.055, which states:


1.  The board may refuse to issue any certificate of registration or authority, permit or license required pursuant to this chapter for one or any combination of causes stated in subsection 2 of this section.  The board shall notify the applicant in writing of the reasons for the refusal and shall advise the applicant of his or her right to file a complaint with the administrative hearing commission as provided by chapter 621, RSMo.

2.  The board may cause a complaint to be filed with the administrative hearing commission . . . for any one or any combination of the following causes:

*   *   *


(2) The person has been finally adjudicated and found guilty, or entered a plea of guilty or nolo contendere, in a criminal prosecution under the laws of any state or of the United States, for any offense reasonably related to the qualifications, functions or duties of any profession licensed or regulated under this chapter, for any offense an essential element of which is fraud, dishonesty or an act of violence, or for any offense involving moral turpitude, whether or not sentence is imposed;
*   *   *


(15) Violation of the drug laws or rules and regulations of this state, any other state or the federal government[.]

Criminal Offense

The Board argues that the crime of possession of a controlled substance is an offense reasonably related to the profession of pharmacy technician and an offense involving moral turpitude.

Moral turpitude is:

an act of baseness, vileness, or depravity in the private and social duties which a man owes to his fellowman or to society in general, contrary to the accepted and customary rule of right and duty between man and man; everything “done contrary to justice, honesty, modesty, and good morals.”
In re Frick, 694 S.W.2d 473, 479 (Mo. banc 1985) (quoting In re Wallace, 19 S.W.2d 625 
(Mo. banc 1929)).


A pharmacy technician assists a pharmacist in the practice of pharmacy, which includes “the interpretation and evaluation of prescription orders; [and] the compounding, dispensing and labeling of drugs and devices pursuant to prescription orders[.]”
  We agree that the offense of drug possession is reasonably related to this profession.  We also agree that it is an offense involving moral turpitude.
  We find cause to deny Hill’s license under § 338.055.1 and .2(2).

Violation of Drug Law


The Board argues that Hill violated § 195.202.1, RSMo 2000, which states:
Except as authorized by sections 195.005 to 195.425, it is unlawful for any person to possess to have under his control a controlled substance[;]
and 21 U.S.C. 844, which states:

(a) Unlawful acts; penalties.  It shall be unlawful for any person to knowingly or intentionally possess a controlled substance unless such substance was obtained directly, or pursuant to a valid prescription or order, from a practitioner, while acting in the course of his professional practice, or except as otherwise authorized by this chapter or subchapter II of this chapter.

Marijuana is a controlled substance.


We agree that Hill violated drug laws and find cause to deny Hill’s license under 
§ 338.055.1 and .2(15).

Discretion

Hill did not attend the hearing or offer any evidence of rehabilitation.  We exercise our discretion and deny her application for registration.
EDL

Section 338.013.1 provides in part:
The board shall place on the employment disqualification list the name of an applicant who the board has refused to issue a certificate of registration as a pharmacy technician, or the name of a person who the board has issued a certificate of registration as a pharmacy technician but has authorized to work under certain terms and conditions.

We denied Hill’s application for registration.  She is also subject to inclusion on the EDL for violating drug laws.
  We place her name on the EDL for a period of time consistent with the Board’s decision.
Summary


There is cause to deny Hill’s application under § 338.055.1 and .2(2) and (15).  We deny Hill’s application for registration as a pharmacy technician and place Hill on the EDL for four years, effective from January 29, 2006.

SO ORDERED on September 22, 2006.



________________________________



JUNE STRIEGEL DOUGHTY



Commissioner

	�Ex. 1.


	�Ex. 2.


	�In Hill’s complaint and amended complaint, she argues that the Board had already approved her application and allowed her to sit for an examination.  Hill provided no evidence of this.  There is no explanation as to why the Board’s decision was issued so long after the application date.


	�Sections 338.013.2 and 621.045.  Statutory references, unless otherwise noted, are to the 2005 Supplement to the Revised Statutes of Missouri.


	�Section 621.120, RSMo 2000.  


	�J.C. Nichols Co. v. Director of Revenue, 796 S.W.2d 16, 20 (Mo. banc 1990).  


	�State Bd. of Regis’n for the Healing Arts v. Finch, 514 S.W.2d 608, 614 (Mo. App., K.C.D. 1974).  


	�S.J.V. ex rel. Blank v. Voshage, 860 S.W.2d 802, 804 (Mo. App., E.D. 1993).  


	�Finch, 514 S.W.2d at 614.


	�Ballew v. Ainsworth, 670 S.W.2d 94, 103 (Mo. App., E.D. 1984).


	�Section 338.010.1, RSMo 2000.


	�In re Shrunk, 847 S.W.2d 789, 791 (Mo. banc 1993).


	�21 CFR 1308.11(d)(22) and § 195.017.2(4)(s).


	�Section 338.013.7.
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